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PHOTO: Hemlock District School
The 1867 Stone’s Oswego County Map for the Town of Boylston shows residents and the location of their homes and farms. This column continues locating the roads and families listed on the 1867 map for Sandy Creek and Boylston as both towns will be represented in the documentation of farms in the upcoming farm book. 

Boylston: On what was called the Moore Road, leading north from the Lacona-Smartville Road at the Boylston Wesleyan Church, lived J. Moore, D. P. Mead, Lyman Moore, D. Moore. This road bears off to the east, crosses Sandy Creek at the Keeney Bridge and indicates a sawmill on the south bank of the creek, with N. Nash living across the creek, and a shingle mill farther down the stream. Crossing the bridge we find the home and grist mill of William Keeney and across the road the map shows a cider mill. 
Archer Corners: Alvinus Cummins, Mrs. Doten Porter, Mrs. Mark James, Frank Goodrich, Mrs. S. J. Williams, Mrs. Jennie Phillips; the road turns to the four corners know as Hemlock District where Joseph L. Bortles, Michael R. Baker, Nelson J. Williams lived. On the same road as the McKibben property were three properties owned by J. W. Snyder, Mrs. Mary Remington; on the bank of the creek, about opposite the Snyder places but some distance back from the road on a hill was the Hiram Webb and sawmill. George Sherman lived where the McKibbin house was with H. Crandall and Riley Cummins beyond and Frank Berry nearly to the intersection with the Smartville Road. 
The Old State Road, built a short time before the War of 1812 and used for the passage of troops at that time, cuts across the northeastern corner of the town of Boylston. Residents as of 1867 were S. Robarge, Godfrey Duane, H. Bush, T. Pratt, Z. Bidwell, C. Rogers, T. O’Riely, William Plantz, Rev. A. Ridgeway, Mr. Packard, Patrick McCarthy, and John Phelps.

Nearly to the Jefferson County line the map shows a settlement called East Boylston. Here lived M. Kerney, R. Flanders, O. W. Grow, H. A. Parker (carpenter/joiner), O. Chapman, Mrs. Richards, A. W. Grow and Brother (dealers in groceries, dry goods, boots and shoes, lumber and shingles), Burns and Perry Manufacturers of flour and salt barrel staves and heading, spruce, hemlock and hardwood lumber , spruce flooring, lath, clapboards,etc.)
Just beyond this point the road turns west, running from the state road along the northern part of the town and crossing the line into the town of Sandy Creek and thence to the Hagen Corners on the Ridge Road north of Lacona. 

The first house on this road was owned by Mrs. Wilcox, J. Horr, Daniel Ballou, W. Barker, George W. Shepard, M. Shepard, D. Wilder, J. Bettinger, A. Allard, H. Greenwood, A. Calkins, Lorenzo Palmer, N. Ouderkirk,Bargy, W. S. Widrick, H. Widrick, M. Widrick, Chris John Huffstater, schoolhouse No. 2 at the corners by the North Boylston Church, M. McDaniels, J. Belcher, Mrs. A. Larmonth, near the Sandy Creek line. 

I will be away from October 1 to October 25th. Office hours will resume on October 25th. E-mail at historian@sandycreekny.us. Our web site address is http://sandycreekny.tripod.com      

Charlene

